
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
September 4, 2014, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 7, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be attached 
as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that item during the Board 
meeting 


 







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Presentation on medical disability water rates (Richard Skaff) (Est. time: 20 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-17, Accepting Offer to Purchase District 


property at 14335 Woods Avenue, Guerneville. (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Sale of District property at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville to 


the Russian River Recreation and Park District (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re USDA Bond Re-Funding (Est. time 10 min) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re FY 2013-14 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations 


and Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Cell tower rental consultant 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 
5 min.) 


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 
 


 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 


Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 
 


 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
August 7, 2014 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Christine M. Hanley, Acting Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donahue, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Paige MacDonnel, Russian River Recreation and 
        Parks District 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Rich Holmer at 6:30 p.m.  
Secretary to the Board called Roll. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 
p.m.) 


 
There were no changes to Agenda and no Declarations of Conflict. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:40 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 3, 2014 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any 
 
 1. Letter dated July 11, 2014 from the Department of Water Resources re Urban 


Water Management Plan. 


 1







.   
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:45 p.m.) 
 


(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:46 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:46 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-14, Stage 1 Water Shortage 


Declaration  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
adopt Resolution 14-14, Declaring a Stage 1 Water Shortage.  Director Wikle seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
B. (6:55 p.m.) Discussion/Action re USDA Bond Refunding.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.     
 
C. (7:10 p.m.) Discussion/Action re the Change of Monte Rio Treatment Plant 


Chlorination System to a TriChlor Feeder.  This item was postponed for further 
analysis by staff.  


 
D. (7:15 p.m.) Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-15, Overruling 


Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge for Sweetwater Springs 
Water District Director Holmer opened Public Hearing re:  Annual Flat Charge at 7;15 
p.m..  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  There was 
no public comment.  The Public Hearing was closed by Director Holmer at 7:18 p.m..  
Further Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt Resolution 14-
15, Overruling Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge for Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, amended to correct minor syntax errors.  Director Lipinski 
seconded as amended.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 
E. (7:20 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Sale of District property at 17448 River Lane, 


Guerneville to the Russian River Recreation and Park District  The GM provided an 
overview of this item and provided copies of correspondence from Ratepayer addressing 
his concerns about this item.  Paige MacDonnel representing the Russian River 
Recreation and Parks District provided additional information about this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
F. (7:40 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-16, Expressing Appreciation for the 


Services of Walter Hall as Maintenance Worker.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to accept Resolution 14-16, Expressing Appreciation 
for the Services of Walter Hall as Maintenance Worker  Director Lipinski seconded.  
Motion carried 4-0. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory Testing. 
2. Leaks 
3. Water Production and Sales 
4. Flow at Hacienda 
5. 2015 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Gantt Chart 
 
 


 2







VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:00 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder  pointed out that District Production figures relative to 2013 indicate we are 
making progress toward the conservation goal of 20% less water and re-stated the idea of 
determining our top 10 users and work with them to use less.     
 
Director Holmer complimented Field Crew for its very prompt response and times of completion re:  
leaks.   
 
Director Wikle inquired how are we to report to State Board re:  Conservation mandates.  GM 
advised that State Board will provide appropriate forms.  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:15 p.m.) 
 
At 8:15 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:17 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:45 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 14335 Woods Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 


Negotiating parties: SSWD and High Offer from the Public Offering due by 
August 5, 2014 
Direction was given to staff. 


 
C. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957 
 Title: Legal Counsel 
 No action was taken. 
 
D. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
 District negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 No action was taken. 
 
B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957 
 Title: General Manager 
 Direction was given to staff. 
 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:49 p.m.) 
 
1. Presentation on medical disability water rates (Richard Skaff) 
2. Trichlor Feeder System 
3. USDA Bond Re-Funding 
4. Woods Avenue property offer acceptance 
5. Riverlane property 
6. FY 2013-14 Year-End Actual vs. Budgeted report 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 4:50 p.m. 


 3







 4


 
Respectfully submitted, 


 
 
 


Christine M. Hanley 
Acting Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:40 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:45 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:46 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:00 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:15 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:49 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 4, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE MEDICAL DISABILITY WATER RATE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation from Richard Skaff regarding adding 
a medical disability water rate to the District’s water rate structure. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Small   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Mr. Richard Skaff has requested that the District add a medical disability water rate 
waiver to the District’s water rate schedule.  He has requested the water rate waiver be 
patterned on the Medical Disability Water Rate in place at the Marin Municipal Water 
District (MMWD, form attached as Exhibit A).   
 
Some facts about the MMWD 
 


 Service area includes a population of 186,000 and the District has approximately 
61,400 service connections and sells on average approximately 28,000 AF.  It 
uses approximately 10 times more Russian River water than Sweetwater Springs 
Water District (SSWD) does (7400 AF).  MMWD has 244 authorized positions in 
FY 2015.   


 
 Annual total budget is approximately $93,000,000 with an operations budget of 


$70,000,000.  See Exhibit B for a fact sheet on MMWD.   
 


 MMWD also has a Service Charge Waiver Program that allows qualifying low-
income customers to have the service charge waived.   


 
 MMWD has a different rate structure than SSWD.  It has much higher water 


usage rates, larger tiers, seasonal rates (bigger tiers in the summer) and a 
smaller service charge.  It bills bimonthly like the District.  See Table A for a 
comparison of single family residential (SFR) rates (both discounts only apply to 
SFR 5/8 inch meters).  Commercial accounts do not have a 4th tier.  







Medical Disability Water Rate   2 
September 4, 2014 


 
Table A.  Comparison of MMWD and SSWD Water Rates 
 
MMWD Single-Family Residential Customers  


Tiers (units) 
Tier Rate per 


CCF* December - 
May CCF 


June - 
November CCF 


1 $3.74 0 - 21 0 - 26 
2 $7.48 22 - 48 27 - 59 
3 $14.97 49 - 80 60 - 99 
4 $22.45 81+ 100+ 
 
SSWD Single-Family Residential Customers  


Tier Rate per 
CCF* 


December - 
May CCF 


June - 
November CCF 


1 $1.30 0 – 8 No Change 
2 $2.60 9 – 20 “ 
3 $3.85 21 – 80 “ 
4 $5.60 81+ “ 
 
Fixed Bimontly Charges: 
MMWD – $21.53  
SSWD - $66.55  
 
 
 







 
r. 07.27.11 


 
MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEDICALLY DISABLED WATER RATE 


QUALIFYING CRITERIA 
 


 
To qualify for MMWD's Medically Disabled Water Rate Program, you must: 
 
_ Establish your disability through doctor verification (form attached), and install low-


volume showerheads, ULF toilets and faucet washers in your home; 
 
_ Be a single family residential
 


 customer with a meter size no larger than 1";  


_ Have the water service in your name


 


  (apartment complexes or mobile home parks 
with a master meter do not qualify); and 


_ Not be claimed as a dependent on another person's income tax return. 
 
  
 
 
Please complete the attached application and return it to Customer Service Department, 
MMWD, 220 Nellen Avenue, Corte Madera, CA 94925. Your application must include 
certification from your doctor as to your disability. 
 
Please direct all questions regarding this program to our Customer Service Department at 
(415) 945-1409. We will notify you in writing as to whether or not you qualify for this 
program. Please allow three weeks for your application to be processed. 
 
  
 
 


MMWD Code Section 6.01.100


 


.  ". . . The District may perform a water audit on 
any property of a consumer receiving the medically disabled water rate to 
assure that the consumer is in compliance with this section and other provisions 
in this Code pertaining to water conservation." 


The District reserves the right to request additional information at any time.  While 
eligibility is normally for a one-year period, participation in the program can be 
revoked if a consumer does not meet all qualifying criteria as set forth in the District 
Code. 







 
r. 07.27.11 


 MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 CERTIFICATION OF DOCTOR OF MEDICINE OR OSTEOPATHY 
 LICENSED TO PRACTICE MEDICINE IN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 
 
MEDICAL CONDITION
 


: 


I certify that the medical condition and needs of 
 
                                                                                                                                          , 
                                                       name of patient 
 
who is a full-time resident of the customer's household, are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                               
 
(One of the boxes below must be checked) 
1.  Condition is: [   ] Permanent. 


[   ] Temporary.  If temporary, anticipated recovery date:                 .     
2.  Patient is on a life-supporting device: 


[   ] Yes     [   ] No 
(A life-support device is a medical devised used to sustain life or relied upon for mobility.  The term 
"life-support device" includes, but is not limited to, respirators, hemodialysis machines, suction 
machines, pressure pads and pumps, aerosol tents, electrostatic and ultrasonic nebulizers.  Devices 
used for therapy rather than for life support and have no related extra water needs generally do not 
qualify). 


 
      __________________________                   


 
Doctor's name (please print or type) 


      __________________________                   
Doctor's signature 
    ___________________________                   
Office address         
  ____________________________                   
City, state, zip                                                  
_____________________________                   


 
Telephone No.  


            
If you would like to provide more detail, please attach your signed statement. 







 
r. 07.27.11 


    
      
MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 


                     MEDICALLY DISABLED WATER RATE APPLICATION 
 
Application for Calendar Year 20___      


 
The Medically Disabled Water Rate discount will result in nine (9) additional CCFs* being billed at 
the Tier One base rate per two-month billing cycle.   
 
 


 
MMWD Customer #: 


 
Date: 


 
Name: 


 
Phone: (       ) 


 
Address: 
 
                                                                                                                                        
                             number & street                                                      city                                       zip 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND 
CORRECT. 
 


                      _____________________________


 
                       Signature 


Please notify Marin Municipal Water District if the person qualifying for Medical Baseline 
Quantities moves to another service address. 
 
*One CCF, or hundred cubic feet, is 748 gallons. 


 







SERVICE AREA
Square miles  147
Population  186,000


WATER SUPPLY
Watershed lands (acres)  21,635
Number of storage reservoirs  7
Total reservoir storage capacity in acre-feet1  79,566
 In millions of gallons  29,927
Average yearly rainfall in inches at Lake Lagunitas  52
Average yearly runoff, less losses2 in acre-feet   61,400
 In millions of gallons  20,000
Water imported from Russian River (avg. annual, acre-feet)  7,400
Operational yield3 (acre-feet)   28,500


WATER USE
Service connections (active)  61,391
 Residential  55,166
 Other  6,225
Maximum annual use (1987) in acre-feet  33,100
 In millions of gallons  10,785
Average annual use from fiscal year 2003-2013 in acre-feet  28,009
 In millions of gallons  9,127


FINANCE FY 2013-14 2014-15 
Budget fiscal year revenues (not including fire flow) $69,577,720 $71,119,800
Budget fiscal year disbursements (not including fire flow)
 Operations  $67,309,148 $69,466,761
 Debt service $6,833,590 $6,836,512
 Capital purchases and projects $19,585,400 $19,880,749
Total budgeted fiscal year disbursements $93,728,138 $96,184,022
Utility plant - net book value4 $333,039,275               - - -


DRINKING WATER FACILITIES
Miles of pipeline  888
Number of storage tanks  125
Total tank storage capacity (millions of gallons)  82
Number of pump stations  90
Number of potable water treatment plants  3
Maximum daily treatment plant capacity (millions of gallons)  59
Average daily treatment plant production (millions of gallons)  25


RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES
Miles of pipeline  24
Number of storage tanks  3
Total tank storage capacity (millions of gallons)  1.9
Number of pump stations  5
Number of recycled water treatment plants  1
Maximum daily treatment plant capacity (millions of gallons)  2


WATERSHED FACILITIES
Miles of watershed roads  92
Miles of watershed trails  59
Number of picnic grounds  8
Acres of wildfire protection fuel breaks  1,077


1One acre-foot is equivalent to 325,851 gallons, enough water to cover one acre (about the 
size of a football field) to a depth of one foot or to supply three families for one year
2Due to evaporation 
3Amount of water that can be supplied in all but the driest years
4Per audited financial statements as of June 30, 2012


2013/14 MMWD Fact Sheet


Marin Municipal Water District 


220 Nellen Ave. 
Corte Madera, CA 94925 
marinwater.org
(415) 945-1455


Marin Municipal Water 
District is a public utility 
providing water to 186,000 


people in a 147-square-mile area of 
south and central Marin County. In 
operation since 1912, MMWD is 
the oldest municipal water district 
in California. The district is divided 
into five divisions, with an elected 
representative from each division 
serving as a director. The Board 
of Directors appoints a general 
manager to supervise all operations.


The primary source of water supply 
is rainfall stored in seven reservoirs. 
Additional water is imported from 
the Russian River annually. After 
treatment at one of the district's 
three water treatment plants, the 
water is transmitted throughout 
the MMWD service area by gravity 
flow or booster pumps. Operation 
of the district is financed solely by 
revenue from the sale of water. 
Large-scale capital improvements 
have been funded by bond issues 
and certificates of participation.


OUR MISSION
To manage our natural resources in 
a sustainable manner and to provide 
our customers with reliable, high-
quality water at a reasonable price.


 


Rev: 10/2013 
Printed on recycled paper





		Item V-A - Medical Disability Rate

		Item V-A.1 MMWD Medical Disability Water Rate Application

		Item V-A.2 MMWD Fact Sheet






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 4, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A SALES CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT PROPERTY AT 14335 WOODS AVE., 
GUERNEVILLE, WITH STACY JARDINE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 14-17 which authorizes the General 
Manager to execute a sales contract for District property at 14335 Woods Ave., 
Guerneville, with Stacy Jardine. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Sales price is $16,108.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The parcel at 14335 Woods Ave., Guerneville is owned by the Sweetwater Springs Water District 
(District), has had no known use by the District and staff know of no future use of this property 
by the District.  The District Lands Strategy suggested making available parcels that have no 
known future use by the District but possible future use by the public, available for sale. This 
parcel was one of the many parcels on the unneeded District property list that was offered to the 
school district and to the County affordable housing agency back in 2010, as required by State 
law.  None of these agencies expressed interest.    
 
Some time ago a neighbor to this property asked about the possibility of sale of the parcel to 
her.  The District had the parcel appraised and received an estimated appraisal report value of 
$35,000.  The parcel is approximately 5,230 square feet in size and has public water and sewer 
access – it is a buildable lot.  
 
The District recognized that sale of property in this category should be offered to the public in 
general as part of a sales process.  As such, the parcel was advertised in the Sonoma West 
Times, by a for sale sign on the property and by flyers to the surrounding neighborhood houses.  
The sale of the property was open to sealed bid offers from July 15, 2014 until 3 pm on August 
5, 2014.  The District received one offer of $16,108 from Stacy Jardine.  The District Board 
accepted the offer in closed session at the August 7, 2014 Meeting.  The Board can authorize the 
General Manager to execute the sales contract with Stacy Jardine with the passage of Resolution 
14-17.   
 







Resolution No. 14-17 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 


EXECUTE THE SALE OF THE PARCEL AT 14335 WOODS AVE., 
GUERNEVILLE TO STACY JARDINE   


 
 WHEREAS, the District owns the parcel at 14335 Woods Ave., Guerneville, CA 
95446; and  
 


WHEREAS, in 2010 the District developed a strategy for  unneeded parcels that 
encouraged the sale of unneeded parcels with possible interests to the neighborhood or 
to others to the general public; and 


 
WHEREAS, a neighbor to the Woods Ave. parcel had expressed interest in 


acquiring the parcel; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District had the Woods Ave. parcel appraised and the appraisal 


report came back with an estimated value of $35,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District offered the parcel for sale to the general public through 


newspaper advertisement, flyers to the neighborhood and for sale signs; and 
 
WHEREAS, Stacy Jardine made a sealed bid offer of $16,108 and this was the 


only offer received for the parcel by the closing date and time of the public offering. 
 
 


 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute the sales contract with 
Stacy Jardine for the parcel at 14335 Woods Ave., Guerneville, at a sales price of 
$16,108.    
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on September 4, 2014, by the following vote. 
 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 





		Item V-B - Woods Ave Property Sale

		Item V-B.1. Resolution 14-17 Woods Ave Sale






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 4, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE: SALES CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT PROPERTY AT 
17448 RIVER LANE, GUERNEVILLE, WITH THE RUSSIAN RIVER RECREATION AND PARK 
DISTRICT 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the progress of the sale of the 17448 
River Land parcel to the Russian River Recreation and Park District. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Agreed upon sales price is $60,000.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District and the Russian River Recreation and Park District (RRR&PD) have entered into a 
sales contract that would transfer the parcel at 17448 River Lane to the RRR&PD for $60,000 
subject to an open space easement held by the District.  The RRR&PD have had the easement 
language for some time; I was asked to come to the August 20 RRR&PD to explain the 
easement.   
 
I attended the August 20 meeting; also in attendance were Directors Robb-Wilder and Lipinski.  
Prior to the discussion on the easement was an item on river access at that location.  There was 
good attendance and all were in favor of keeping the current situation (without no trespassing 
signs) but also expressed recognition for the need to keep the area clean.   
 
Regarding the easement, I was questioned why the easement was necessary and there were 
statements by RRR&PD directors that the easement was a surprise.  I explained the Board’s 
thinking on the easement – the Board wants a guarantee that the parcel won’t be sold some day 
and turned into a purpose that could block public access to the river and that would change the 
public use nature of the parcel.  There should be no surprise that there is an easement because 
it’s included in the sales contract language.  It is an easement instead of a covenant because our 
legal counsel determined that was the best way to address the District’s concern.  The District 
prepared the easement because the RRR&PD negotiator, Herman Hernandez, told me we should 
do it since it was our condition.   
 
At least one RRR&PD expressed his opinion that including the easement should change the price 
on the parcel.  It’s my opinion (I did not directly state this at the meeting) that it already does.  
I was told that RRR&PD will have their legal counsel review the easement and they would get 
back to me.  I ended my comments with a statement that this parcel should remain open to the 
public and getting it to the RRR&PD is the best way to do that.  The RRR&PD Chair Hernandez 
agreed with that sentiment and reiterated that he would get back to me after legal counsel 
review.  No time frame was given for that review.   








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 4, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: USDA BOND REFINANCING ISSUES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the status of the United States 
Department of Agriculture (USDA) bond refinancing issues and provide direction to staff 
and conceptually approved the proposed USDA solution. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Unknown   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
We have heard from Anita Lopez of USDA regarding their (USDA) proposed resolution 
of the refinancing issue that they first identified to us in February.  Their proposal is to 
refinance the Series 2003 bonds remainder for 40 years at 2.375%.  Compared to the 
refinancing that we thought went into effect a year ago, the USDA proposal would 
reduce our annual payments by approximately $8,000 per year in the first 20 years, 
substantially reduce our payments for the next 9 years – remember that those were the 
bonds that were not called – but add 11 years to the total payment period.  Their 
proposal saves the District approximately $900,000 over the life of the total repayment 
period which adds to the savings we have already accrued with our initial refinancing 
(approximately $925,000). The proposed solution includes deferring the FY2014-2015 
payment – we would skip this fiscal year and the next payment would be in August 
2015.  This is a good resolution of this situation.  
 
The next steps are not clear to me at the time of writing this report. We have 
communicated with USDA that at a staff level we thank them for the proposed solution 
and that this is being present to the District Board at this meeting.  We have questions 
into USDA about what happens next.  The first step is getting Board approval of the 
proposed resolution and I recommend its approval.  I will continue to communicate with 
USDA to find out what we need to do next.   
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 4, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) 
REPORTS THRU JUNE 30, 2014 (100%) 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
OPERATIONS 
 
FY 2013-14 ended up with the District showing a profit of $80,450 after 
budgeted1 transfers.  (District budgeting aims for a profit of $0 after budgeted 
transfers.) 
 
Water Sales came in $29,995 less than budgeted -- one big reason for that is the 
District sold 11,236 fewer units of water than in FY 2012-13.  Some of this 
shortfall was made up by other sources of revenue ($14,084 more than 
budgeted), and the remainder by less than budgeted expenses($63,784 less than 
budgeted).   
 
A summary of items with the biggest budget variances are listed below, and 
there are quite a few this year so I color-coded them.  Green line items helped 
our bottom line, red items hindered it.  Please see the attached spreadsheet for a 
complete breakdown and explanation of line item variances. 
 
 


                                                 
1 In addition to the $675,800 budgeted to be transferred to CIRF and other funds, the District also 
transferred $238,367 to CIRF for FY 2012-13 CDR revenue and $147,466 to CIRF to conform to District 
policy levels in the Operations fund.   







Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru June 30, 2014 (100%) 2  
September 4, 2014 


 Revenue: 
 Water Sales   $29,995 less than budgeted 
 Rent    $14,804 more than budgeted 
 Misc. Income  $2,463 more than budgeted 
 
 Expenses: 
 Salary (Wages, OT, etc.)  $30,775 less than budgeted 
 Telephones    $2,268 more than budgeted 
 Vehicle maintenance  $5,165 less than budgeted 
 SCADA system   $4,102 less than budgeted 
 Distribution system   $12,146 less than budgeted 
 Treatment System/wells  $4,274 less than budgeted 
 Claims    $6,086 more than budgeted 
 Government Fees   $4,112 more than budgeted 
 Printing    $3,909 less than budgeted 
 Computers/Software  $1,922 more than budgeted 
 Legal fees    $14,196 less than budgeted 
 Electricity    $6,760 more than budgeted 
 Tanks/Facilities Sites  $7,234 less than budgeted 
 Leasehold improvements  $1,714 more than budgeted 
 
 
CAPITAL  
 
The 4Q review is dominated by capital expenses – it shows the effects of 
completing the 2014 CIP during this past fiscal year.  Debt payments are down 
approximately $32,000 to reflect the effect of the USDA bonds refinancing.  A 
new line item is Net Capital Funding which we use for planning purposes (the 
target is $500,000) – that was approximately $82,000 more than budgeted but 
still below the target.  The remaining costs of the 2015 CIP will be carried over 
into the 2015 fiscal year.  
 
The Capital Budget ended the year in good shape – revenues are on track and 
expenses are close to where they were expected to be.     
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY  
 
Table 3. District Fund Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and end of 
year (EOY).  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the fiscal year.   
 
Table 3 has been changed a lot this year – we have tried to make the funds at 
the County balances (and titles) better correspond to the District Reserve Policy 
and the purposes for which the funds will be used.  As noted above, in addition to 
the $675,800 budgeted to be transferred to CIRF and other funds, the District 
also transferred $238,367 to CIRF for FY 2012-13 CDR revenue and $147,466 to 
CIRF to conform to District policy levels in the Operations Fund.  For another 
example, Fund 776708 is now called Cap One Bond and Citizens Bank Loan Debt 
and at the end of the year contains next year’s payment for that debt.  It was 







Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru June 30, 2014 (100%) 3  
September 4, 2014 


formerly the Private Placement Loan fund and is not needed for that purpose 
now.   We have also added two funds to the fund list in Table 3 – 776302 Capital 
and Debt Policy Reserve and 776708 Cap One Bonds and Citizens Bank Loan 
Debt.  They had always been in the County Balances table (same fund numbers 
but with different titles).   
 
The End of Year Total Funds available is substantially higher than budgeted 
mostly because of the decision to include the funds in the State Loans and 
Federal Loans funds in District total reserves.   
 
    







FY 2013-14 
Actual


2013-14 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,351,512 1,332,100 19,412 101.46%
4031.11· Current Charges 589,167 675,100 -85,934 87.27%
4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 246,360 245,800 560 100.23%
4031.1 · Other Water Sales Revenue 35,966 0 35,966 100.0%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 2,223,005 2,253,000 -29,995 98.67% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,005 2,253,000 -29,995 98.67%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 6,684 7,500 -816 89.12% Reflects interest earnings thru 4Q *
3600 · Construction New Services 4,601 5,000 -399 92.02%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 100 2,000 -1,900 5.0%


4032 · Rent 90,204 75,400 14,804 119.63%
 In the 1Q, Crystal Communications paid past 
amounts owed in addition to current rent.  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 2,433 2,500 -67 97.31%  


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 3,463 1,000 2,463 346.26%
In the 1Q, surplus bond refinancing funds totalling 
$2057.91 were placed here.


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 107,484 93,400 14,084 115.08%


Total Income 2,330,489 2,346,400 -15,911 99.32%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages
669,619 693,626 -24,007 96.54%


 


5912 · Overtime 27,604 30,772 -3,168 89.7%   
5916 · On-Call Pay 29,754 33,090 -3,336 89.92%


5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,837 37,100 -263 99.29%  
Total Salary 763,813 794,588 -30,775 96.13%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p -1,769 -1,769 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 120,003 115,563 4,440 103.84%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 13,751 14,021 -270 98.07%


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 144,469 143,762 707 100.49% In the 1Q, expenses reflect payment thru October.  
5931 · Retiree Health 17,308 17,324 -16 99.91% In the 4Q $14,500 was was paid to CERBT *
5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 21,146 25,746 -4,600 82.13%


In the 1Q, expenses include pymt for FY 2012-13 
Audit; in the 2Q, worker's comp was paid for the 
remainder of the year.  


Total Benefits 314,908 316,416 -1,508 99.52%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,721 1,111,004 -32,283 97.09%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2013-14 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2014 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 5







FY 2013-14 
Actual


2013-14 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2013-14 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2014 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6040-I · Internet service 1,783 1,800 -17 99.05%
6040-C · Cell Phones 2,991 2,900 91 103.14%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 389 850 -461 45.77%
6040-T · Telephones 18,768 16,500 2,268 113.75%


Total Communications 23,931 22,050 1,881 108.53%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 25,412 21,000 4,412 121.01% (Paid for the year)


6102 · Auto/Equipment 5,170 14,000 -8,830 36.93%
Total Insurances 30,582 35,000 -4,418 87.38%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 10,835 16,000 -5,165 67.72%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,507 4,600 907 119.71%
In the 2Q, the answering service was paid for the 
year.  Also, the annual phone maintenance contract 
was paid ($1450) with a fee that almost doubled 
compared to past years.


 
Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 16,341 20,600 -4,259 79.33%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 7,233 7,850 -617 92.14%


6100 · SCADA system 898 5,000 -4,102 17.96%  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 39,854 52,000 -12,146 76.64%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 40,726 45,000 -4,274 90.5%
Well 4.  The budgeted well rehab for FY 2013-14 was 
pushed to FY 2014-15. *


6143 · Generator Maintenance 3,238 3,200 38 101.2%
In the 2Q, $2378 in unbudgeted maintenance was 
paid for repair of the office generator, all to be 
reimbursed by Ferrellgas.  (Reimbursed in the 3Q.)


 
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 91,950 113,050 -21,100 81.34%


Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 9,128 9,020 108 101.19%  


6303 · Claims
7,586 1,500 6,086 505.73%


In the 2Q, $7586 claim paid on behalf of MiCasita 
complex to repave parking lot after the Mill Street 
Emergency leak.  


6593 · Governmental Fees 24,762 20,650 4,112 119.91%
1Q expense includes water system fees, paid twice 
yearly but higher than budgeted this year, and annual 
LAFCO costs.   


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 41,476 31,170 10,306 133.06%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage
14,300 16,000 -1,700 89.37%


  
6430 · Printing Expense 4,541 8,450 -3,909 53.74%


Some printing projects are now being done in-house. 
The savings in this line item will be partially offset by 
higher copier maintenance fees (line item 6151). *


6461 · Office Supplies 3,985 4,000 -15 99.63%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 799 700 99 114.21%


6890 · Computers/Software 4,722 2,800 1,922 168.66%


In the 2Q, $599.80 in unbudgeted expense to renew 
District's domain name for the next 20 years.  Also 
$564.44 for unbudgeted purchase of backup 
batteries for the computer and phone server due to 
electrical outage that blew the existing batteries.


 
6579 · Furniture 256 500 -244 51.19%


Total Office Expense 28,604 32,450 -3,846 88.15%


 Page 2 of 5







FY 2013-14 
Actual


2013-14 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2013-14 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2014 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 15,090 17,000 -1,910 88.77% In the 1Q, some chemicals were purchased for the 
year.


6880 · Tools and Equipment
3,751 6,000 -2,249 62.52%


  
6881 · Safety Equipment 610 1,500 -890 40.67%


Total Operating Supplies 19,451 24,500 -5,049 79.39%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 3,307 3,400 -93 97.26%  


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 14,472 13,000 1,472 111.32%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 2,245 3,300 -1,055 68.03% 1Q expense includes annual fee for labor negotiator  
6610 · Legal 13,804 28,000 -14,196 49.3%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 30,294 30,000 294 100.98%  


Total Professional Services 64,121 77,700 -13,579 82.52%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 1,653 3,300 -1,647 50.09%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 27,000 27,000 0 100.0% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 28,653 30,300 -1,647 94.56%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 1,282 4,150 -2,868 30.9%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 24,323 26,500 -2,177 91.78%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,805 6,400 -595 90.7%


Total Transportation & Travel 31,410 37,050 -5,640 84.78%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 791 1,500 -709 52.76%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,302 1,200 102 108.46% 1Q expense includes T-shirts, purchased once yearly


6021.4 · Jackets 0 360 -360 0.0%
Total Uniforms 2,093 3,060 -967 68.4%


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 96,760 90,000 6,760 107.51%  


7321 · Propane 3,399 4,000 -601 84.97%  


Total Utilities 100,158 94,000 6,158 106.55%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 478,771 520,930 -42,159 91.91%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,557,492 1,631,934 -74,442 95.44%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 13,766 21,000 -7,234 65.55%
In the 1Q, $4,289 was paid for unbudgeted roof at 
MRTP.  (None of the projects budgeted for this line 
item were done in FY 2013-14.) *


8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 1,714  0 1,714 100.0%
In the 1Q, $1714 was paid for unbudgeted parking lot 
lighting.


8517 · Field/office equipment 1,267 1,000 267 126.74%  


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%  


 Page 3 of 5







FY 2013-14 
Actual


2013-14 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2013-14 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2014 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 16,747 22,000 -5,253 76.13%


Total Expense 1,574,239 1,653,934 -79,695 95.18%


Net Ordinary Income 756,250 692,466 63,784 109.21%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue
484,725 245,800 238,925 197.2%


In the 1Q, $238,368 was transferred to CIRF for FY 
2012-13.  In the 4Q $246,360.45 was transferred for 
FY 2013-14. *


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 537,466 390,000 147,466 137.81%
In the 1Q, $147,466 was transferred to conform to 
FYE 2013 policy reserve levels.  


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


1,062,191 675,800 386,391 157.18%


Transfers to other funds exceeded budgeted 
amounts because of the FY 2012-13 transfer for 
CDR ($238,368) and because of a transfer to CIRF 
to conform the Operations fund to policy levels. 


*


 Page 4 of 5







Water Sales


Base Current CDR


Oct $120,214.89 $79,799.60 $21,865.58


Nov $105,494.33 $44,382.70 $19,278.19


Dec $119,855.42 $51,917.20 $21,799.79


TOTAL $345,564.64 $176,099.50 $62,943.56


July $105,543.52 $62,759.60
August $119,815.28 $71,367.00
Sept $105,351.55 $60,696.35


$330,710.35 $194,822.95


$676,274.99 $370,922.45







1  Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2013-14 Capital Program Budget Variances as of June 30, 2014 (100%)


FY 13-14
ACTUAL 


(4Q)
FY 13-14
BUDGET


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 5,027 27,000 -21,973 18.6%


Annual Assessment (County) 716,021 710,000 6,021 100.8%


Prior Year Assessment 35,560 40,000 -4,440 88.9%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 484,728 245,800 238,928 197.2%


Interest 16,287 25,000 -8,713 65.1%


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 537,466 390,000 147,466 137.8%


25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


314,148 1,525,000 -1,210,852 20.6%


Cost of CIP above revenue (could be deficit in 
Surplus/Deficit below). Difference from Actual is 
CIP 2015; affected by FY13 Fund transfers


TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 2,134,237 2,987,800 -853,563 71.4%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 71,120 687,000 -615,880 10.4% reduced substantially because of refinancing


Cap One Revenue Bond 583,947 0 583,947 NA Refinancing amount


Total Bond Payments 655,067 687,000 -31,933 95.4%
Sum of two prior rows and shows the impact of 
the refinancing


State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 -128 99.9% both payments made


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 -1 100.0% both payments made


Total Debt Payments 1,059,252 1,091,314 -32,062 97.1% Sum of all debt payments


2014 CIP 964,121 974,000 -9,879 99.0% Design: $138,036; Constr $835.964


2014 Mill Street Emergency 52,614 0 52,614


2015 CIP 39,923 878,149 -838,226 4.5%
Awarded Construction Contract is $934,197; CM 
is approximately $130,000 


In-House Construction Projects 18,328 25,000 -6,672 73.3%


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 2,134,238 2,968,463 -834,225 71.9%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 0  19,337 -19,337 0.0%


Net Capital Funding 444,893 363,153 81,739 122.5%


=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + 
Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments (FY14 
only)


Funds from Reserves


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations







FY 13-14


Actual EOY


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 244,790 200,000 44,790.10    
corresponds to 
Operations (776013)


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 407,984 407,984 -               


corresponds to 
Operating Reserve 
(776039)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 272,829 272,829 -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(776302)


Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000 -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(776302)


Total District Policy 1,175,603 1,130,813 44,790       
TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,683,403 2,565,728 1,117,675  


Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,507,800 1,434,915 1,072,885


Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (776401) 1,132,004      1,694,137  -562,133
OPERATIONS (776013) 323,402         200,000     123,402
OPERATING RESERVE (776039) 407,983         407,984     -1
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE 
(776302) 511,306       NA


not included in FY14 
Budget


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (776211) 116,779         102,757     14,022
BUILDING (776021) 150,850       160,850     -10,000
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (776708) 795,000       NA


not included in FY14 
Budget


FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (776203) 72,570           na
not included in FY14 
Budget


STATE LOANS (776500&776609) 173,510       na
not included in FY14 
Budget


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(776518&776617)


171,370         


Restricted to last payment 
for State Loans; not 
included in Total Reserves


3,683,403    2,565,728 1,117,675


DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 
District Policy Reserves


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  DISTRICT FUND BALANCES (EOY FY 
2014) 13-14 Budget


Difference 
Actual-FY14 Comments







 


County Balances FY 2013-14
(from "Trial Balance by Project" Report (FAMIS 017))


$630,624.13 $630,624.13 $135,850.00 $396,970.00 $689,303.42 $113,106.20 $0.00 $2,232,622.92 $ 24,957.13 $24,750.00 $148,554.92 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,543,358.58


NAME


CERBT
Operations + 


15% Cash 
Policy Reserve


Bldg Fund
Operating 


Policy 
Reserve (25%)


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


In-house 
Construction


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


Capital 
Improvements


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830


Final Pymt


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 


Final Pymt


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


INDEX  776013 776021 776039 776203 776211 776302 776401 776500 776518 776609 776617 776708


PROJECT  001 002 003 200 210 300 400 500 510 600 610 700


FP1-Jul $0.00 $630,624.13 $135,850.00 $396,970.00 $689,303.42 $110,106.66 $0.00 $2,028,590.20 $24,957.13 $24,750.00 $148,554.92 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,336,326.32


FP2-Aug $0.00 $332,358.13 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $689,303.42 $107,091.69 $0.00 $2,129,848.47 $24,957.13 $24,750.00 $148,554.92 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,003,859.62


FP3-Sept $0.00 $402,790.13 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $654,431.25 $103,980.35 $0.00 $2,024,329.80 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,845,703.46


FP4-Oct $0.00 $484,629.07 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $36,217.50 $103,980.35 $0.00 $2,463,401.26 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,748,400.11


FP5-Nov $0.00 $574,629.07 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $36,217.50 $100,755.32 $0.00 $2,355,674.18 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,727,448.00


FP6-Dec $0.00 $634,629.07 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $36,217.50 $100,337.47 $0.00 $2,564,523.60 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,995,879.57


FP7-Jan $0.00 $681,245.37 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $36,217.50 $100,173.75 $0.00 $2,424,833.57 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,902,642.12


FP8-Feb $0.00 $746,245.37 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $72,570.00 $94,872.58 $0.00 $2,107,620.29 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,681,480.17


FP9-Mar $0.00 $818,245.37 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $72,570.00 $94,872.58 $0.00 $2,107,620.29 $1,403.19 $24,750.00 $1,936.90 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,668,394.19


FP10-Apr $14,500.00 $438,297.75 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $119,301.03 $510,797.00 $1,827,543.61 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,872,222.34


FP11-May $0.00 $468,297.75 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $117,298.66 $510,797.00 $1,011,012.61 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $795,000.00 $3,878,688.97


FP12-Jun $15,296.65 $568,297.75 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $510,797.00 $871,510.01 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $795,000.00 $3,838,666.43


FP 13 
(FINAL)


$15,296.65 $323,402.68 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $511,305.56 $1,132,004.01 $ 24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $795,000.00 $3,854,773.92


Beginning balances per FAMIS:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from GL101 until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


 





		Item V-E - Staff report re Actual v Budgeted - 4Q 2013-14

		Item V-E.1 - Budget variances as of 6-30-2014 (100%)

		Sheet1

		Water Sales breakdown



		Item V-E.2 - Capital Budget variances as of 06-30-2014 (100%)

		Table 2. FY14Q2



		Item V-E.3 - Fund Balances as of 06-30-2014 (100%)

		Table 3



		Item V-E.4 - County Acctg Indices FY 13-14

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2014  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT ACQUISITION OF 
PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE WITH CELL TOWER NEGOTIATIONS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 14-18 which authorizes 
the General Manager to execute a contract for professional services 
from Sun-Kay Associates for assistance in leasing District property for 
cell and other communication tower locations after review of the 
agreement by District Counsel. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  unknown but positive      
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has property at elevations and locations attractive to 
companies that provide communication services such as cell phones and 
radios.  We currently have two leases for towers on Mount Jackson and 
recently went through a proposed lease experience at the Highland 
Treatment Plant site.    Both of these leases terminate fairly soon and will 
need to be renegotiated.   
 
Staff do not have much experience in the communications business, other 
than the activities related to the current leases and the proposed leases 
for the Highland site.  We have spent some time investigating getting 
assistance.  Sunkay Associates is the only firm we have found that does 
what we want – assist in getting appropriate cell locations rented by cell 
companies.  Exhibit A is the Sunkay Marketing Agreement.  Some 
characteristics  
 


 No upfront costs –  Sunkay receives 20% of the gross Site Lease 
revenues as long as the lease is in effect. 


 Proactive leasing – Sunkay will actively try to lease properties 
versus waiting to be approached by communications firms. 


 24 month term – if this isn’t working out, we won’t be partners for 
very long.   


 The agreement does not apply to existing leases.  If we want their 
assistance with our existing leases, that would be a different 
agreement.   







Sunkay Cell Tower Professional Services 2  
September 4, 2014 
 


 


 
District Counsel has not had an opportunity to review the Site Marketing 
Agreement; we should allow her time to do that.   
 
This appears to be a low risk contract with the possibility of revenue for 
the District that we won’t otherwise receive.  I recommend approval of 
Resolution 14-18.   
 
  







RESOLUTION 14-18 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 


WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A SITE MARKETING AGREEMENT FOR 


PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES FOR LEASING DISTRICT PROPERTY FOR CELL TOWER 


AND OTHER COMMUNICATION PURPOSES WITH SUNKAY ASSOCIATES AND 


AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN AFTER LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW 


OF THE AGREEMENT  
 
 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) has parcels that have the 
potential for use as cell tower or other communication purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has need of consulting professional services for 
assistance in marketing those sites for those purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, District staff has investigated getting this type of assistance and has 
found Sunkay Associates to have the experience to provide the needed assistance; 
and: 


 
WHEREAS, the site marketing agreement (Exhibit A) proposed by Sunkay 


appears to be fair to both parties; and 
 


WHEREAS, the marketing agreement proposed by Sunkay needs review by 
District Legal Counsel. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Manager is authorized to 
execute said Agreement on behalf of the District after review by District Legal Counsel. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
September 4, 2014, by the following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski          
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle       


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 







Exhibit A.   


SITE MARKETING SERVICES AGREEMENT 


This SITE MARKETING SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of 
this _____ day of _________________, 2014 (“Effective Date”), by and between Sunkay Associates, 
LLC (“Sunkay”) and _______________________________________, (hereinafter “Owner”). 


Sunkay and Owner mutually desire for Sunkay to act as an intermediary in bringing new wireless 
communications facility opportunities to the Owner and in facilitating the closing of agreements between 
Owner and Wireless Operator, as hereinafter defined. The Owner owns the property or properties 
(“together, Property”) located at _________________________________________________________. 


Portions of the Property may be suitable or may be used for the installation of wireless communications 
facilities and equipment (individually a “Site”, collectively “Sites”), each for use by one or more Wireless 
Operators.  The Owner wishes to enter into leases to certain Sites with Wireless Operators for the specific 
purpose of installation and operation of its wireless communication facilities. 


IN CONSIDERATION OF the matters described above and of the mutual benefits and obligations set 
forth in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged, the 
parties to this Agreement agree as follows: 


1. Grant of Marketing Rights:  Owner grants to Sunkay the ability to perform Site Marketing 
Services as described herein for the period of 24 months from the Effective Date. The purpose of 
the Site Marketing Services shall be to obtain a Qualifying Site Lease from a Wireless Operator.  
Both parties understand and agree that no fee or payment will be owed to Sunkay unless and until 
Sunkay has produced a Qualifying Site Lease.  Owner agrees to be compensated under a 
Qualifying Site Lease through Owner Revenue (as hereinafter defined). 


2. Consulting Services: Owner grants to Sunkay the ability to engage in Consulting Services, 
specifically in regards to the terms that will be contained in the eventual lease agreement, and any 
subsequent negotiations with the Wireless Operator. 


 
3. Site Lease Rent:  The Owner’s share of revenue derived from any new Qualifying Site Lease that 


is procured by Sunkay shall be eighty percent (80%) of the gross Site Lease revenues actually 
received from Wireless Operators, for as long as the applicable Site Lease remains in existence 
(“Owner Revenue”).  The Owner revenue shall be paid as Site Lease rent. Sunkay shall receive 
twenty percent (20%) of the gross Site Lease revenues actually received from Wireless Operators 
for as long as the applicable Site Lease remains in existence, including all renewal, extension, and 
holdover terms (“Partner Revenue”). Owner Revenue and Partner Revenue will be paid directly 
by the Wireless Operator through a payment direction form executed by both parties at the time 
of execution of the Site Lease. 


 
4. Term:  With respect to the Exclusive Marketing Rights and the Non-Exclusive Marketing Rights, 


the term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and expire twenty-four (24) 
months from this date. 


 
5. Non-circumvention:  During the term of this Agreement, the Owner will not attempt to do 


business with, or otherwise solicit employees, agents, or contractors of Wireless Operators found 







Owner Initials _________     


     


 


2


or otherwise referred by Sunkay to the Owner for the purpose of circumventing Sunkay, the result 
of which shall be to prevent Sunkay from realizing Partner Revenue. This provision shall apply to 
both the Property owned or managed by Owner.  If such circumvention shall occur, Sunkay shall 
be entitled to any Partner Revenue due pursuant to this Agreement relating to such transaction 


 
6. Assignment:  Sunkay may assign, mortgage, charge or otherwise deal with or dispose of Sunkay 


interest in and to this Agreement without the consent of the Lessor.  Upon an assignment of its 
interest in this Agreement, Sunkay will be released from all obligations under this Agreement 
which fall due for performance on or after the date of assignment and the assignee will have no 
liability for any defaults of Sunkay accruing prior to the date of assignment. 
 


7. Capacity/Independent Contractor: It is expressly agreed that Sunkay is acting as an 
independent contractor and not as an employee in providing the services of this Agreement.  
Sunkay and Owner acknowledge that this Agreement does not create a partnership or joint 
venture between them. 
 


8. Modification of Agreement: Any amendment or modification of this Agreement or additional 
obligation assumed by either party in connection with this Agreement will only be binding if 
evidenced in writing signed by each party or an authorized representative of each party. 
 


9. Entire Agreement:  It is agreed that there is no representation, warranty, collateral agreement or 
condition affecting this Agreement except as expressed in it. 


 
10. Severability:  In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or 


unenforceable in whole or in part, all other provisions will nevertheless continue to be valid and 
enforceable with the invalid or unenforceable parts severed from the remainder of the Agreement. 
 


11. Governing Law:  It is the intention of the parties to this Agreement that this Agreement and the 
performance under this Agreement, and all suits and special proceedings under this Agreement, 
be construed in accordance with and governed, to the exclusion of the law of any other forum, by 
the laws of California without regard to the jurisdiction in which any action or special proceeding 
may be instituted. 


 


 







Owner Initials _________     


     


 


3


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have duly executed this Agreement this _______ day of 
_______________________, 2014. 


 


Owner: __________________________________ 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
 
Name: 
Title: 


 
Address: 
Tel: 
Fax: 
 
 
SUNKAY ASSOCIATES, LLC 


 
By:  ______________________________ 
 
Name:  Eric Smithson 
Title: Partner 
 
Address:  1770 Morgans Avenue, San Marcos, CA 92078 
Tel:  760.933.9103 
Fax:  760.593.2403 
 







Owner Initials _________     


     


 


4


DEFINITIONS: 
 


a. Site Marketing Services means the promotion to and communication with Wireless Operators by 
Sunkay regarding Owner’s Property, Site, or Sites for the purpose of obtaining a corresponding 
Qualifying Site Lease from a Wireless Operator for a communications facility. 


b. Wireless Operator shall mean any telecommunications carrier or tower developer, including 
employees, agents, or contractors, that is a current or prospective operator of a wireless station, 
facility or system using licensed and/or unlicensed radio frequency spectrum for any 
transmission, emission or reception of sounds, signals, signs, writing, images or intelligence of 
any nature.  This definition shall include all related entities, subsidiaries, contractors, and agents 
of the Wireless Operator. 


c. Consulting Services means any engagement of communication or negotiation between Sunkay 
and prospective or current Wireless Operators regarding a Site or Sites, including but not limited 
to lease negotiations, legal review of agreements, market evaluations, site location, lease area and 
equipment design. 


d. Property shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals and more specifically described on 
Schedule 1. 


e. Qualifying Site Lease shall mean a Site Lease with respect to Owner’s Property that is procured 
by Sunkay. 


f. Site Lease(s) shall mean a lease, license, or other use agreement between Owner, as landlord, and 
Wireless Operator(s), as tenant, with respect to a Site. 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Owner Initials _________     


     


 


5


 


 


 


Schedule 1:  Properties 


 


Site 
# 


Address 1  City State Zip APN 


1      


2      


3      


4      


5      


6      


7      


8      


9      


10      


 





		Item V-F - Cell Tower Assistance

		MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2014 



		Item V-F.1 - RES 14-18 Marketing Agm with Sunkay

		Item V-F.2 - Sunkay Marketing Agmt






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 4, 2014  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in July was 32,208 units (73.9 AF, 


Guerneville cycle) and production was 78.9 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were 
higher and production lower (66.9 AF and 92.0 AF, respectively).  The water lost 
percentage decreased to 23.8%, as shown in Figure 1.  That’s our best number yet; it will 
be interesting to see if we can stay there or keep it going lower.     


 
3. Leaks:  In July we had 21 total leaks and spent 57.7 man-hours on them.   Those are 


more leaks and fewer man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks and fewer 
man-hours compared to July one year ago (12 leaks, 113 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows 
service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.  We’re heading in the 
wrong direction for this.   


 
4. Flow at Hacienda: Figure 3 shows the flow in the Russian River this spring compared to 


last year, 2009 and the 2000-2008 average.  2009 was a similarly dry year, last year had a 
historically dry January through the summer, and the 2000-2008 average was the former 
standard for summer flow but we will likely not see that again.  Mid-summer flows are 
looking very similar to last year, but that will likely change with the Temporary Urgency 
Change request approved by the State Board.          


 
5. 2015 CIP:   Piazza Construction started work on the 2015 CIP the week of July 29 and is 


making good progress.             
 


6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   Two toilet rebates were approved in August.  A 
preliminary update on the Direct Install Program accounting numbers is as follows: 25 
direct install toilets in 2013 (16 customers) and 8 in 2014 (5 customers).  We did not get 
information on how many have been approved but not completed or are on a wait list.   
The grant for additional funding should have formal approval in October.                 


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were four in-house projects reported for 


August.  Staff replaced a service line on Sunny Drive (7 hours), pulled an old valve box on 
Mill St. (2 hours), trimmed a tree and removed brush on Mill Court (1.5 hours), and 
replaced 100 feet of line and flushed new line on Santa Clara (6 hours).   







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 5 
August 7, 2014 
 


 
8. Gantt Chart:   In the Gantt Chart for September we have ongoing work for the 2015 CIP 


which is happening and start of design for the 2016 CIP.  We intend to start discussions 
with Coastland Engineering in September and come to the Board with a contract for design 
and construction management of the 2016 CIP (Canyon One Road in Rio Nido) at the 
October meeting.    


 
 
 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


000


200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


1,


1,


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


Sales


Production


%Difference


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 5 
August 7, 2014 
 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2014 Compared to Earlier Years 


and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated August 26, 2014


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2013


2014


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP
        2015 CIP Construction Starts
        2016 CIP Design
        2016 CIP Award of Contract
        2016 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-14
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Table 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: September 4, 2014 



